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; Group strateglc report for the year ended 30 September 2017

The directors present their strategic report for the group and the parent company for the year ended 30 September 2017

'Prmc1pal actwntles_and'rewew of the busmess

* Almac Group Limited is a prlvate hmlted company incorporated in Northern Ireland. The parent company s reglstered ofﬁce IS.
-detalled onpagel.

The parent company is a holding investment company and it also provides significant operational and other support functions to
the Almac group of companies.

‘ . B . . . . _\ . . . N ‘. ‘L .' .
The activities of the group extend from drug discovery through all areas of clinical trials to the commercialisation of
pharmaceutical products. The group provides world-class integrated research and development support and an unparalleled
range of services to customers, mcludmg the market leaders, within the pharmaceutlcal and blotechnology sectors.

The group’s strategy is to create shareholder value by mvestmg for the long term and by positioning the group to be the leader

. in its chosen markets. The performance for the year under review reflects further sustained progress towards achieving this long.

term objectlve and at the same time maintaining the group’s strong balance sheet.

" Performance and position '

The group’s profit before income tax for the year is £33,031,456 (2016: £26,785 268) The Group s profit after tax is £26,707, 813
(2016: £14,667,216). Net assets of the Group are £377,982,161 (2016: £355,322,294). .

- In 2017, an increase in revenue enabled the Group to achieve a proﬁ't before tax which was higher than the equivalent figure in-

the previous year. During 2017, the Group also benefitted from upfront and other payments relating to the out-licensing of
oncology products which had been developed in-house by the Group and which also contributed to the proﬁt before tax fi igure
for the year.

During the year ended 30 September 2017, the group eontmued to invest in both focused research and development programmes
and capital to facilitate further improvement in the services provided to its customers.

The Board-are conf'dent that the investment programme currently being implemented will lead to results in‘line with the stated
objective of creating long term shareholder value.

Key performance indicators (“KPIs”)
The directors consider that, given the nature of the group’s operations, the KPIs are growth in revenue, earnings before interest,

tax, depreciation, amortisation and research and development expenditure (“EBITDA before research and development
expenditure™) and employee numbers. These are reviewed on a regular basis within the operating companies.

, - 2017 2016
" Growth in revenue +19% T +14%
EBITDA before research and development expenditure £64,683,694 . - £55,257,350

Employee numbers . 4,407 - 3,975
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. Group strategic report for the year ended 30 September 2017 , B o

Principal risks and uncertainties

The management of the business and the execution of the group’s strategy are subject to a number of rlsks The prmcnpal issues
are discussed below:

Competition

The group operates in competltive global markets and aims to provide excellent products and servnces at competmve prices.
These factors are continually reviewed in each business to ensure appropriate margins are being realised and that the quality of
service and products is of the highest standard and consnstently improving. Quality systems are maintained according to current ]
good manufacturing practice and international quality standards. - :

" Performance is affected by market preésure to reduce prices, together with the increasing impact of low cost generics. The
" emergence of services provided from countries with low labour costs is also a major competitive factor in the marketplace.

: 'Emplo'yees ’

_The group’s performance is largely dependent on its staff and therefore the reliance on key. individuals together wrth the .
continuing ability to attract people with relevant experience and skills are important factors in ensuring the success of the group.
To mitigate these risks, the group has training, learning and development programmes in place and has implemented a number
of incentive schemes linked to the group’s performance that:are designed to retain key individuals and provide attractive long-
term career opportunities.

Supply cham

Other risks faced are product availablllty and the fluctuation in prices of both raw materials and consumables The security of
product supply is monitored by the businesses on an ongomg basis with regular reviews of such key factors as supplier financial
strength, product quality and service levels. The group’s continual review of market prices pr0v1des some protection from the
potentially adverse-impact of volatility in raw material prices.

Future developments

- The group intends to continue its commitment to research and development and capital investment to provide innovative
solutions and services to its customers.

- There are . many challenges facing the pharmaceutical and biotech markets with the introduction of new technologies and the
emergence of new global competitors. The group believes it is well positioned to meet these future challenges and opportumties
within this changing market place

Environment

The group recognises its corporate responsibility to carry out its operations whilst ensuring that there is minimal environmental -
impact. The directors’ continued-aim is to comply with all applicable environmental legislation, prevent pollution and reduce
waste wherever. possrble

Health and safety

~The group is commltted to.achieving the highest practicable standards in health and safety management and strives to make all _
sites and offices safe environments for employees and customers alike.
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Gomg concern '

. The directors have prepared cash ﬂow forecasts for a period of at least twelve months from the date of sngnmg this report and
consequently have a reasonable expectation that the group has adequate fi nancial resources to meet its operational needs for at

 least a period of twelve months from the date the financial statements are signed and therefore the gomg concern basns has been ’
adopted in preparing'the financial statements.

This report was approved by .fhe board and signed on its behalf. ‘ ' : o S

K Step ens )
‘Diréctor ) - ' ’ .
19 December 2017 ' o
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Directors’. report for the year ended 30 September 2017

The dlrectors present their annual report and the audited ﬁnancral statements of the-group and the parent company for the year
ended 30 September 2017. A review of the business, position at the year end and future developments are detalled in the Group
strateglc report. : . :

Financial risk management

The group’s operations expose it to a variety of financial risks that include market risk (including price risk and interest rate
risk), foreign exchange risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The group has.in place a risk management programme that seeks to
limit the adverse effects on the financial performance of the group by monitoring the foregoing risks and ensurmg that the balance
‘sheet strength is maintained at all times. ‘

Prlce rlsk

The group does not have a major exposure to commodity price risk as a result of its operations and is not exposed to equ:ty
" securities pnce risk as |t holds no listed investments.

[nterest rate risk

The group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings which are a combination of overdrafts, bank borrowings, term loans, loans
from related partiés and finance lease liabilities. Interest bearing assets consist of short-term bank deposits. Borrowings at
variable rates expose the group to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings at fixed rates expose the group to fair value interest
. rate risk. The group manages these risks by .a mixture of variable interest rates on overdrafts, bank borrowmgs and loans from.
related parties linked to LIBOR or UK Bank of England base rate and fixed rate interest on the group’s finance lease liabilities.
The interest rates are monitored on a regular basis with reference to movements in global interest rates and the potential impact
upon the group’s cost of borrowing. Further commentary is provided in note 3.

Foreign excha nge risk

Whilst the main part of the group’s revenues and expenses are denominated in UK pounds sterling, the group is exposed to

foreign exchange risk in the normal course of business, principally on sales in US dollars and investment in its overseas

. operations, principally in the USA. Group policy is fo minimise the exposure of overseas subsidiaries to transaction risk by
matching local currency income and costs. While the group has not used financial instruments to date to hedge foreign exchange

- exposure, this posmon is kept constantly under review. : :

Credit risk

The group. has implemerited policies that require appropriate credit checks on potential customers before sales are made. Credit
control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors.
The amount of éxposure to individual customers is subject to a limit, which is reassessed regularly by the Board. Credit risk also
arises from cash and cash equivalents with banks and financial institutions. Banking arrangements are reviewed and regularly
reassessed by the board.

qumdlty risk

Prudent liquidity risk- management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the avallablhty of fundmg through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the group’s liquidity reserve on the basis of
expected cash flow. In addition, the group’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and
considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these; monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and
external regulatory requirements; and maintaining debt financing plans. .

~ Dividends
The oi'/erriding objectives of the Almac Group are to:
o Strateglcally develop - and expand a world class Group of companies operating in the Pharmaceutlcal and Biotech -
- sectors; and

) o Adhere to the healthcare objectlves of the McClay Foundatlon thereby protecting the Iegacy of the Group s Founder
© Sir Allen McClay, and-his.vision for the Foundation and its charitable purposes. -
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Dividends (continued)

Thos'eiobjectives'are reflected in the Strategic Goals adopted by Almac which include, amongst othersi -
’~ remaining owned by The McClay Foundaition;

continuing Group wide innovation;

achievement of best-in-class business offermgs

maintaining and improving profit margins; and
cultivating a desirable place to work.

In order to achieve its objectives and meet those strategic goals, Almac has developed ambitious capital and research and

: development programmes requiring significant on-going investment in its trading subsidiaries and the'R&D programmes they.
are engaged in. That investment is funded primarily by bank borrowings and the reinvestment of all profits generated from the
Group’s trading activities back into Almac and its subsidiaries. As a consequence, no dividends were paid during the year (20] 6
£ml) and the directors do not recommend payment of a final dividend (2016: £nil). ’

Research and development activities

. The group is strongly committed to research and development activities in the areas of clinical dlagnostics and drug discovery
in order to secure and enhance its market position. Research expenditure in the year totalled £9,425, 427 (2016:£8,206,173) and
was expensed as incurred. This is stated before the deduction of £1,220,416 (2016: £826,185) of research and development tax
credits. A further £1,691,051 (2016: £1,628,591) of research and development tax credits has been deducted from other expenses.
No development expendit'ure was incurred during the year (2016: £nil).

Post.balance sheet events

On 31 October 2017, the group acquired the shares of Bioclin Research Laboratories Ltd, a company registered in the Republic
of Ireland and POA Scandinavia AB, a company registered in Sweden for a combined consideration of £13,056,875 and
deferred consideration dependent on performance in future years. No fair value assessment has been performed as the
completion accounts have not yet been finalised.

Directors

The directors who served during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements are shown on page '1. .
- Political donations |

No donations for political purposes were made during the year (2016: £nil).

Employees

The group systematically provides employees with information on matters of concern to them, consulting them or their
representatives regularly, so that their views can be taken into account when making decisions that are likely to affect their
interests. Employee involvement in the group is encouraged, as achieving a common awareness on the part of all employees of
the financial and economic factors affecting the group plays a major role in objectives.

The group is committed to employment policies, which follow best practice based on equal opportunities for all employees,
irrespective of sex, race, colour, disability or marital status. The group gives full and fair consideration to applications for
. employment from disabled persons, having regard to their particular aptitudes and abilities. Appropriate arrangements are made.
for the continued employment and training, career development and promotion of disabled persons employed by the group.- If
members of staff become disabled, where possible, the group continues employment elther in the same or an alternative posrtion
. with approprlate retraining bemg given if necessary. :
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Statement of disclosure of information to auditors
So far as each of the directors in office at the date of approval of these financial sté;tements is aware: )
" @ there is no relevant audit information of which the parent cdmpany’é auditors are unaware; and

.& they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order to make themselves aware of any relevant
. audit information and to establish that the parent company’s auditors are aware of that information.

Indépende’nt auditors

The independent auditors, PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have lndlcated their willingness to continue in office, and a resolutlon
concerning their re- appomtment will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.
i

This report WAS approyed by the board ‘and signed on its ‘behalf.

Director -
4 19 December 2017
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Statement of dlrectors responsnbllltles in respect of the financial statements

The directors are respon51ble for preparing the Annual report and the financial statements in accordance wnth appllcable law
and regulation: .

Company law requires the dnrectors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the dlrectors have -

prepared the group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by

the European Union and parent company financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards -

(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless

they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of thé group and parent company and of the profit or
- loss of the group and parent company for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to: ~

e - select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

o state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed for the group financial
. statements and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed for the company ﬁnancnal statements,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

e make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and -

. ‘prepare the ﬁnancnal statements on the going concern basns unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group and
- parent company will continue in business.

The dlrectors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the group.and
parent company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the group and parent
company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the
group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulatlon

The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets ofthe group and parent company and hence for taking reasonable 4
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other lrregularltles

Director
19 December 2017
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' .Independent auditors’ report to the members of Almac Group Limited

. Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion '
In our opmlon Almac Group Limited’s group ﬁnancral statements and parent company financial statements (the “ﬁnancral
statements”)

e  give atrue and fair view ofthe state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 30 September 2017 and:
of the group’s profit and the group’s and the parent company’s cash flows for the year then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and, as regards'the parent
company’s financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

e . have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Comparries Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual report (the “Annual report”), which comprise: the group
~and parent company balance sheéts as at 30 September 2017; the group income statement and the group statement of '
comprehensive income, the group and parent company cash flow statements and the group.and parent company statements of °

changes in equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a descnptlon of the
srgmfcant accounting policies. :

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and aoplicable law. Our
‘responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of.our report. We belneve that the audit-evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basrs for

our opinion.

Independence ‘

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
- financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we.have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern ’ -
. We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relatlon to which ISAs (UK) require us to report to you when

e the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate;.or : .

e the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the group’s and parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of.
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the group’s and
parent comipany’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Reporting on other.information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual report other than the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does
not cover the other mformatlon and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this réport, any form of assurance thereon. .

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in-
-the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of'the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothmg to report based
on these responsrbllltles : -

With respect to the Strateglc report and Dlrectors report, we also considered whether the disclosures requtred by the’ UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included. -

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (UK) requlre us also to -
report certain opinions and matters as described below.
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. ‘Independent auditors’ report to the members of Almac Group Limited (continued)-

Reporting on other information'(continued) '
Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

- In our epinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic report and -
Directors’ report for the year-ended 30 September 2017 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requ1rements

In llght of the knowledge and understandmg of the group and parent company and their envnronment obtamed in the course of
the.audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and Directors’ report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors' responsibilities:in.respect of the financial statements set out on page 8,
-the directors-are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and

_ for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they 4
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

" to fraud or error. '

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so. :

. Auditors’ lesponstbtlttles Jor the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

fi nancial statements. '

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s websnte at:
www.frc.org. ukfaudntorsresponsnblhtles This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the parent company’s members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to-any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opmlon

e we have not received all the mformatlon and explanations we require for our audit; or
e adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audlt have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or
¢ ‘certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
-e . the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

‘We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Kevin MacAllister (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
- Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
_Belfast-
- 19 December 2017
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‘.Group_ income statement for the year ended 30 September 2017 .

2016

2017
N.ote, £ £
"Continuing operations
Revenue 2 531,421,727 447,224,088
Cost of sales (354,071,203) (297,337,644)
“Gross profit 177,350,524, 149,886,444
Distribution costs 5 (23,032,845) (19,675,912) -
* Administrative expenses 5 (111,936,399) (95,755,861)
‘ Research and development net expenditure 5 (8,205,011) (7,379,988)
- Operating profit ‘ 34,176,269 ‘27,074_,68.'3 4
Operating- profit is analysed as: . .
EBITDA before researc_h and development expenditure 64,683,694 55,257,350
Depreciation of property,-plant and equipment (14,946,011) (13,960,737)
Amortisation of intangirble assets . (7,356,403) (6,841,942)
' Research and development expenditure (8,205,0i1) ‘ - (7,379,988)
Finance costs A ’ (1,153,961) (1,083,059)
Finance income 9,148 793,644
‘ Fiﬁance costs - net (1,144,813) (289,415)
Profit before income tax 33,031,456 . 26,785,268
Income tax expense 8 (6,323,643) (12,118,052)
- Profit for the year 26,707,813 14,667,216

The notes on pages 18 to 55 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Group statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 September 2017

t2017 2016

£ S
Profit for the year . T26,707813 14,667,216
Other comprehens:ive income: ‘ ’ - i
Items that may be subsequeﬁtly reclassified to profit or loss: ' ’
- Currency translation differenpes . o o . : (4,634,499) 21 918,815
TOtal quprehbnsive income for the year ' 22,073,314 . Co 3§,‘5 86,031

The notes én pages 18 to 55 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Almac Group Limited
- Group and parent company statements of changes in equity
For the year ended 30 September 2017 '
Attributable to owners of the parent
' Currency .
Share Share - translation Retained Total
capital " premium reserve earnings equity
Group £ £ £ £ ) £
At 1 October 2015 15,203,832 ]73,292,?46 12,813,267 117,426,918 318,736,263 -
Comprehensive income ' A . B
Profit for the year . - - - 114,667,216 14,667,216
. Other comprehensive income ‘ . '
Currency translation differences , - - '21,918,815 . - .21,918,815
Tofal.comprehensive income - - 21,918,815 , ]4,667,216 36,586,031
At 1 October 2016 - 15,203,832 173,292,246 34,732,082 132,094,134 355,322,294
Comprehensive income ' ‘ ‘ ' .
Profit for the year - - - 26,707,813 26,707,.813 .
Other compréhensive expen.se . ' A
Currency translation différences ’ - - (4,634,499) - (4,634,499)
Total comprehensive income - - (4,634,499) 26,707,813 _22;07},314
Issue of Share capital 78,207 508,346 C - - 586,553
At 30 Septeriber 2017 15282,039 173,800,592 30,097,583 158,801,947 377,982,161
Share Share’ Accumulated Total
capital premium “losses " . equity
Company £ £ ) £ £
At 1 October 2015 ‘ 15,203,832 173,292,246 (4;979,651) 183,516,427,
Comprehensive income - Profit for the year and total’ - - . 7,795,156 '7,795,156
comprehensive income . :
At 1 October 2016 o 15,203,832 173,292,246 - 2,815,505 191,311,583
‘ 'Co‘mpr'ehensive expense - Loss for the year and total - - (3,449',591) (3,449,591) o
comprehensive expense s .
Issue of share capital 78,207. 508,346 . - 586,553
At 30 September 2017 15,282,039 173,800,592 (634,086) 188,448,545

The notes on pages 18 to 55 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Group balance sheet as at 30 September 2017 , 4
. : 2017 2016-
Note £ " £
Assets’ o
Non-current assets _ . . .
Property, plant and equipment 9 239912323 . 225,631,524 -
Goodwill _ 10 65,764,644 66,664,808
Other intangible assets 11 35,303,814 38,164,085
Deferred income tax-asset 13 2,1_42,73_1 _ 2,636,399
: Tdtal non-current assets . 343,123,512 : 333,096,816
Current assets :
Iniventories 14 24,663,601 21,846,093
" Current income tax asset . 2,129,563 -
Trade and other receivables 15 133,285,430 112,898,672
Cash and cash equivalents 16 31,381,277 30,682,837
.Total current assets 191,'459,871 : 165,427,602 . .
Total assets 534,583,383 498,524,418
Equity and liabilities
Liabilities '
Current liabilities
Borrowings ‘ 17 7,549,223 7,260,221
Trade and other payables, 18 98,945,475 83,587,736
Current income tax liabilities A - 2,626,246
“Total current Habilities 106,494,698 93,474,203
Non-current liabilities _ ' !
Borrowings . 17 11,378,959 17,080,564 -
Deferred income tax liabilities .- 13 10,062,449. - 8,927,119
Deferred income 19 16,552,961 14,853,741
. Other non-current liabilities 20 12,112,155 8,866,497 :
“Total non-current liabilities 50,106,524 49,727,921
Total liabilities 156,601,222 143,202,124
- Equity attributable to owners of the parent ‘ ' o
Share capital ‘ 21 15,282,039 © 15,203,832
Share premium 21 173,800,592 173,292,246
A Currency translation réserve_: 30,097,583 34,732,082
Retained earnings = 158,801,947 132,094,134 °
Total equity . 377,982,161 . 355,322,294
Total equity and liabiliiigs : 534,583,383 . 498,524,418-

The notes on page§ 18 to 55 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. The financial statements on pages |
11.to 55 were authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 19 December 2017 and were signed on their behalf by:

VY

A D Armstrong (Director)

K Stephens (Director)

Registered number: NI 041551
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Parent company balance sheet as at 30 September 2017

2017 2016
Note £ ' £
" Assets A
Non-current assets
AProperlty, plant and equipment 9 8,568,985 7,715,185
Other intangible assets B 1,320,959 1,558,461
Investments in subsidiaries 12 173,401,018 173,401,017
Deférred income tax assets 13 751,3_4? A 39'5,'010
Total non-current assets 184,042,304 183,069,673
" Current assets .
Trade and other receivables 15 235,853,158 . 216,276,163
Cash and cash equivalents 16 ‘ 4,016,972 ' 4,511,824
_ Total current assets 239,870,130 - 220,787,987 ¢
Total assets. 423,912,434 403,857,660
| Equity and Iiabilitie§
Liabilities -
Current liabilities , )
Borrowings 17 192,380,591 165,008,333
‘Tradé and other payébles 18 - 26,236,639 20,430,017 - -
qurent income fax liabilities 366,750 367,801 -
Total current liabilities 218,983,980 - 185,806,151
N‘on-curr;ent liabilities ) ) .
" Borrowings 17 11,189,326 22,990,616
Deferred income. 19 23,891 45,659
O‘ther non-current liabilities 20 5,266,692 3,703,651
Total non-current Iiabilities' 16,479,909 26,739,926
‘Total liabilities _ _ © 235,463,889 i 212,546,077
Equity attributable to' owners of the parent ) ] ]
Share capital 21 15,282,039 15,203,832
Share premium } 21 173,800,592 173,292,246 .
© Accumulated losses/(retained earnings) o ) '

At 1 October 2,815,505 - (4,979,651)
(Loss)/profit for the year (3,449,591) » 7,795,156
© At 30 September (634,086) 2,815,505°
Total equity 188,448,545 191,311,583
Total equity and liabilities - 423,912,434 403,857,660

The notes on pages 18 to 55 are an integral part of these financial statements. The financial statements on pages 11 to 55 were

o authonsed for issue by the Board of dlrectors on 19 December 2017 and-were signed on thelr behalf by:

A D Armstrong (Director) ° S Campbell (Director) Registered Number NI041551



Cash, cash equivalents and overdrafts at end of the year

Almac Group Limited 16
Group cash flow statement for the year ended 30 September 2017
2017 2016
. Note £ ' £
~Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 23 45,568,214 4 ’ -34,716,726 .
Finance costs (1,153,961) © (1,083,059)
Income tax paid ' (6,024,474) © (5,126,980)
Net cash generated from 6perating é.ctivities 38,389,779 .‘28,506,687'
Cash flows from investing activities ) . . )
Purchase of intangible assets (4,833,861) (5,162,979)

‘ Purdhase ofprope!'ty, plant and eqixibment : (31,283,563)‘ v (26,839,667) -
Capitél 'graﬁts received . . 3,899,181 1,936,896
Purchase of subsidiary (net of cash acquired) : - (3,741,034)

- Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 90,331 .321,193 .
Finance income 9,148 28,024
Net cash used in inveéting activities (32,118,764) (33,457,567)
Cash flows from financing activities . ) _
Finance lease principal payments (551,377) (180,204)
Issue of share capital 586,553 ' : -
Proéeeds from borrowings - 849,419
Repayment of borrowings net of new loans received (3,745,825) (4,203,592)
Repayments to related parties (net) (817,140) (817,139)
Net cash used in financing activities » (4,527,789) (4,351,516) A
Effect of foreign exchangé movement on cash and cash equivalents (812;753) 3,523,045
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and.cash equivalents 930,473 (5,779,351)
Cgsh, cash equivalents and ovérdréﬁs at beginning of the year 28,661,694 28,661,695

' : 16 29,592,167

28,661,695

The notes on pages 18 to 55 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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" Parent company cash flow statement for the year ended 30 Séptember 2017

2016

2017
o Note £ &

Cash flows from operating activities ‘ .
Cash génerated _frbm operétions . 23 1,509,889 1,0_23,457 -
‘Finance costs ' (8,274,201) (4,950,583)
Income tax paid ; (1,026,826)

- Net éash used in operating activities A (6,764,312) (4,953,952) .-
Cash flows from investing activities .
Purchase ~6f pfoperty,- plant and equipment (1,584,259) (2,059,086)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 83,056

~Investment in subsidiary undertakings . - (50,545)
4PurchAase of intangible assets (392,342) (651,711)
Advances to group undertakings (14,070,897) (40,646,44‘8‘)
Finance income 6,159,437 16,406,848

. Net cash used in'inves;ing activitiés (9,888,061') -(26,917,886)
Cash flows from financing activities ) .
Finance lease principal payments (370,116) (632,848)
Rep.ayment of bor.rowings ' (3,101,006) (3,096,613)
‘Advances from group undertakings 19,399,230 20,914,060 .
Repayments to related parties (357,140) (357,140)
Issue of share capitél A . 586,553 -
Net cash generated from financing activities 16,157,521 16,827,459

. Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (494,852) (15,044,379)
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at beginning of the year . 4,511,824 19,556,203
Cjash, cash eqqivalents and bank overdrafts at end of the year 16 4,016,972 4,511,824

The notes on pages 18 to 55 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017
1 . Accounting policies |

General information -

The group’s principal activities during the year extend from drug- discovery through all areas of clinical trials to the
commercialisation of pharmaceutical products. The financial statements are presented in UK pound sterling. The company is a
private limited company incorporated and domiciled in Northern Ireland. The company’s registered address is detailed on page
l. The ﬁnancial statements were approved by the Board of directors on 19 December 2017.

The prmclpal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated fi nancial statements are set out below These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherWIse stated. :

" Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and in accordance with IFRS’s as adopted .
_ by the European.Union, IFRS. Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) and the Companies Act.2006 applicable to companies .
~ reporting under IFRS. These financjal statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
. Tequires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the group’s accounting policies. Management has
concluded that there are no critical assumptlons estimates or judgements involving a high degree ofJudgement or complexity
which require further disclosure. The group’s accounting policies are detailed below.

" Parent co'mpany profit and loss account

‘The directors’ have taken advantage of the exemption available under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and have not
presented an income statement for the company alone. .

¢

New standards, amendments and interpretations effective in the year to 30 September 2017

The accounting pohcnes set out below are those that the group has adopted under International Financial Reportmg Standards as
adopted by the European Union for the year ended 30 September 2017.

No standards have been adopted by the group for the first time during the financial year beglnnmg on or after 1 October 2016
that have had a material impact on the group.

Standards, amendments and interprétations that are not yet effective and have not been adopted early by the company

The following new standards, new 1nterpretat|ons and amendments to standards and interpretations that are not yet effectwe
and have not been adopted early by the company:

Amendments to TAS 12, ’Income taxes' on Recogmtlon of deferred tax assets for unreahsed losses (effectwe 1 January 201 7
Amendments to IAS 7, 'Statement of cash flows' (effective 1 January 2017)

IFRS 9, 'Financial instruments' (effective 1 January 20138)

IFRS 15, 'Revenue from contracts with customers' (effective 1 January 2018)

Amendment to IFRS 4 'Insurance contracts' regarding the implementation of IFRS 9, 'Financial instruments' (1. January 2018)
Amendment to'IFRS 9, 'Financial instruments', on general hedge accounting (effective 1 January 2018)

Amendments to IFRS 15, 'Revenue from contracts with customers'.(effective 1 January 2018)

‘IFRS 16 (Leases) (1 January 2019) -

The mtroductlon of these new standards interpretations and amendments is not expected to have a mater:al impact on the
company.

.-
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)
1 i Ac‘counting policies (continued)

A Basis of consolidation

@  Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities:) over which the group has control. The group controls an.entity when
~ the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition
'Aof a subsidiary is the fair. value of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
" business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The group recognises any non-controlling -
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by- acqulsmon basis, either at fair value or at the non- controllmg interests proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s ldentlﬁable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such re- measurement
are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes
to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance with IAS
39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not re-measured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously held interest measured is
less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is

recognised directly i in the income statement. Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactlons' between -
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conforin with thé group’s accounting policies. .

(b)  Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is,

_ as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
.relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity. .

.(c)  Disposal of §uosidiaries '

"When the group ceases to have control any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when control

is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting, for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the group had
directly disposed of the related assets or llabllmes This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensnve
income are reclassified to proﬁt or loss.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)
, 1 Accounting 'policies (continued)

. P'rcperty, [-)la’nt'and equipment A

* Land and buildings comprise mainly offices, leasehold improvements and laboratories. Property, plant and equipment is stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreCIatlon Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attrlbutable to the acqulsmon
of the items. :

~ Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount.or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income
statement during the ﬁnanCIal period in which they are mcurred

No depreciation is charged on land, nor on assets in the course of construction until such time as they are brought into use. For
all other assets depreciation is calculated to write off the cost less their'estimated residual values, on a straight line basis over the
expected useful economic lives of the assets concerned, or the life of the project, whlchever is earlier. The principal annual rates
used are as follows

\

%
Buildings S .- 2-125
Plant and machmery . - 10
" Fixtures, fittings and computer equipment - 10-25

Motor vehicles - 25
The assets’ residual values and useful economic lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down inimediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount. .

Gains and losses on dlsposals are determmed by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recogmsed within
admlmstratlve expenses in the income statement. ' :

Capitalisation of finance costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
. of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for thelr intended use or sale..

Intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the group’s share of the net identifiable assets

- of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in ‘intangible assets’.
Goodwill is tested annually for. impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on
goodwill are not-reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwnll relating to-the
entity sold

Goodwnl] is allocated to cash -generating units for the purposes of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash -generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in whlch ‘the
‘ goodwnllarose ‘
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- Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (cohtinued)
1 Accounting policies (continued) '
'Intaﬁgible assets (coﬁfinue‘d) ‘

Computer software and software under development

The costs of acquiring and bringing into use computer software are capitalnised and amortised on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful economic life of the software which is between three to ten years.

Capitalised software development costs include external direct costs of material and services together with direct labour costs
-relating to software development. Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and
unique software products controlled by the group are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

it is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;
management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;
there is an ability to use or sell the software product;
it can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic benef' ts; .
~adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software product are
available; and '
e the expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably measured.

. Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs .
previously-recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software product include the software development employee costs
and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognised
as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period.

Product licences

Product licences acquired are capitalised and amortised over their useful economic, life which is between oné to twelve years.
‘They are carried at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Research and development

Expenditure on research is written off in the year in which it is mcurred Development expenditure is capitalised when the
criteria for recogmsmg an asset are met.

Research and development tax credits

Under UK tax legislation introduced in the 2013 Finance Bill research and development credits can be claimed against qualifying
research and development expenditure. Where these credits are not expected to be restricted by the PAYE/NI cap included within
the legislation then the credit is, in substance, a government grant. The group has elected to treat such credits as a government
grant and recognlse the credits in the same period as the research and development expenditure arises. : :

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful economic life, for example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairmeént whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s

' carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell, '
and vatue in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped by cash generating unit. Non-financial assets
other than goodwill-that have suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the ﬁnancnal statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (contmued)

1 Accountmg pohcnes (continued)
Finaricial assets

) The group classif' ies “its financial ‘assets in the following categories: loans and receivables and available- for-sale. - The ‘
classification'depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determmes the c]ass:f cation
of the group’s financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) ‘Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities‘greater than twelve months after the end of the reporting
period These are classified as non-current assets. The group’s loans and receivables-comprise trade‘ and other receivables’ and
cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effectlve interest method.

b A vai[able-for-sale financial assets

Available-for sale financial asset$ are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
“other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the investment matures or management intends to dispose of it -
within 12 months of the end of the reporting period. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs.
Financial assets are derecogniséd when the rights to receive cash flows from the .investments have expired or have been
transferred and the group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Avallable for-sale financial assets are

'subsequently carried at fair value. :

- Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets’ at fair value through profit or loss category are.
presented in the income statement within ‘other (losses)/gains - net’ in the period in which they arise.

Impairment of financial assets

The -group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is.impaired and impairment losses are incurred only
if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estlmated

Evidence of impairment may include mdicatlons that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial

difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other

financial reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is a measureable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in atrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective -
interest rate. The asset’s carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognlsed in'the consolidated
income statement. oo -
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued) -
1 Accou'nting'.p-olicies (eqntinued)

Invesfme_nts in:su‘bsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are held as non-current assets and are recorded at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration
paid, less any provision for impairment. An lmpalrment loss is recogmsed for the amount by which the asset s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. : '

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It éxcludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estlmated selling price
in the ordmary course of the business, less applicable variable selling expenses. :

Trade and oth'er receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as noncurrent assets. Trade receivables are recognised initially at falr value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents ’ o .

In the group statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, and bank
overdrafts. In the group balance sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensrve income or directly in equity respectlvely .

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
~ date in the countries where the group’s subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates-
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

; Deferred income tax assets are-recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against -
which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. .

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
_current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation '
“authority on either the taxable entity of different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis. -
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‘Notes to the financial statements for the-year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)
1. Accouhting policies (continued)
BOI‘I’OWidIgS

Borrowmgs are recognised mmally at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowmgs are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recogmsed in the
income statement over the period of the borrowmgs using the effectrve interest method.

Fees paid on the’ establishment of loan facilities are recogmsed as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capltallsed as a pre-payment
for Ilquldlty services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowmgs are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the hablllty for
at least twelve months aﬂer the balance sheet date.

. Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented
as non-current liabilities. '

' Trade and other payables are recognlsed initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortlsed cost usmg the effective
interest-method. .

Leased assets,

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The group leases certain property, plant and equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment where the group has
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments.  Each
~ lease payment is ‘allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance
outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other long-term payables. The interest
element of the finance cost is charged to the income statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful economic life of the asset and the lease term.

Grants

Grants are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the group will
comply with all attached conditions. Grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate. Grants relating to property, plant and equipment
are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to the income statement on a stralght -line basns over
the expected useful economlc lives of the related assets.

Non-controlling interests

.

Losses applicable to. a minority shareholder in a consolidated subsidiary are allocated against the majority interest except to the
extent that the niinority has a binding obligation, and is financially able to cover losses. If the subsidiary subsequently reports
profits, such profits are allocated to the majority shareholders until the minority’s share of losses prevrously absorbed by the
majorrty has been recovered. .

Sha re capltal

Ordmary shares are cla55|f ed as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equlty as
! deductlon net of tax, from the proceeds
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' .Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (contlnued)

1 Accounting polncnes (contmued)
' Revenue re‘cognition

Revenue’ comprlses the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordmary
course of the group’s activities. Revenue is shown, net of sales taxes, returns, rebates and discounts. -

The group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity. The amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating
to the.sale have been resolved. The group considers this to be upon customer receipt of products, which is when title to the
product is transferred to the customer or upon completion of services when results of testing have been delivered to the customer-
or logistics operations have been performed. The group uses the percentage-of-completion method in accounting for its fixed
price contracts to deliver services. Use of the percentage-of-completion method requnres the group to estimate the services
performed to date as a proportlon of the total services to be performed.

Foreig'n currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity opera‘tes (“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented.in UK
pound sterlmg, which is the group’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
" transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated -in foreign’

currencies are recognised in the income statement, except when deferred in equlty as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying
net investment hedges. .

. Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the income statement
. within “finance income or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in.the income statement within

administrative expenses.

“The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
.have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

e assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;
e income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income

and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

e all resulting currency translation differences are recogmsed as a separate component of equity in a currency translatlon
reserve.

Employee benefit trust

‘The group’s.share of the assets of the Almac Employee Benefit Trust and the Almac Offshore Employee Benefit Trust, which
are both employee benefit trusts, have been incorporated within the group’s balance sheet under the appropriate asset categories.

"Pension obligations

The group operates a defined contribution plan for employees whereby the group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory, ‘contractual or voluntary basis. The group has no further payment

. obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as an employee benefit expense whén they .

are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to-the extent that a cash refund or a reductlon in the future payments is
" available: :



‘.“.',Almac Group lelted o o R

~Notes to. the ﬁnancnal statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (contmued)

1 Accountmg pollcles (contmued)
Share based payments ' -

The group issues cash;settled phantom share-based payments to certain employees of the company for their services to the group.

The group accounts for these phantom share based payments as cash-settled phantom share-based payments which are measured
at fair.value and recognised as an expense in the income statement with a corresponding increase in liabilities (within accruals).
The fair values of these payments are measured at each reporting date using professional external valuers, in line with the terms :
and conditions upon which the awards are granted. The fair value is recognised over the period during which employees become
unconditionally entitled to the awards, subject to the group’s estimate of the number of awards which will lapse due to employees
leaving the group prior to vesting. The total amount recognised in the income statement as an expense is adjusted to reflect the

actual amount of awards that are expected to vest, except where forfeiture is due to employee’s termination of contract.

2 Revenue .

. Revenue is attributable to the group’s principal activities carried out in the United Kingdom, the United States of America, Asia.
and the Republic of Ireland. No analysxs of revenue is presented as the directors conSIder such dlsclosure to be ‘seriously -
prejudicial to the group’s and company s interests.

3 Financial risk management
"Financial risk factors

The group’s operations expose it to a variety of fi nancial risks that include price risk, interest rate risk; foreign exchange risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The group has in place a risk management programme that seeks to limit the adverse effects on the
financial performance of the group by monitoring the foregoing risks.

(a)  Market risk
0) Pricerisk S ‘ o .

The group is not exposed to commodity price risk as a result of its operations nor is the group exposed to equity securities price
risk as it holds no listed equity investments. .

" (ii)  Interest rate risk

The group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings which are a combination of overdrafts, bank borrowings, term loans, loans
- from related parties and finance lease liabilities. Interest bearing assets consist of short-term bank deposits. Borrowings at
variable rates expose the group to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings at fixed rates expose the group to fair value interest
rate risk. The group manages these risks by a mixture of variable interest rates on overdrafts, bank borrowmgs and loans from
related parties linked to LIBOR or UK Bank of England base rate and fi xed rate interest on the group’s finance lease liabilities. .
The interest rate is monitored on a regular basis with reference to movements in global interest rates and-the poteritial impact
upon the group’s cost of borrowing. '

If average interest rates over the year had mcreased/decreased by 1% with alI other variables held constant, the ﬁnancnal
statements wou]d have been 1mpacted as follows:

2017 - 2016
Impact on - Impacton - - .
post-tax Impact on post-tax Impact on
profits equity profits- . equity
: £°000 £000 £000 £000
-~ Interest rates increase-by 1% - - _ . (282) (282) o (290) (290) .-

" Interest rates decrease by 1% : +282 +282 C+290. 4290
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Notes to the ﬁnancnal statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (contlnued)

3 Fmancual rlsk management (contmued)
(iill) Foreign exchange risk .

While the greater part of the group’s revenues and expenses are denominated in UK pound sterling, the:group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk in the normal course of business in its overseas operations, principally on sales in US dollars and in Euros. -
Group policy is to minimise the exposure of overseas subsidiaries to transaction risk by matching local currency income and

" costs. While the group has not used financial instruments to date to hedge foreign exchange exposure, this posmon is kept -
constantly under review.

If the US dollar had weakened / strengthened by 10% against the UK pound sterling spot rate on 30 September with alI other
‘varlab]es held constant, the ﬁnanc1al statements would have been impacted as follows:

2017 o 2016 .-
Impacton  Impacton . Impacton ,
post-tax equity post-tax . Impacton
profits £000 profits equity
: £000 ‘ £°000 £000
US dollar weakens by 10% against UK pound sterling (3,288) (3,288) "~ (2,062) (2,062)

US dollar strengthens by 10% against UK pound sterling 4,019 4,019 2,520 2,520

The figures above reflect retranslation of the group’s investment in foreign subsidiaries. The directors do not regard the group’s
foreign exchange exposure on sales in Euro as significant. .

(b)  Creditrisk

The group has implemented policies that require appropriate credit checks on potential customers before sales are made. Credit

control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past-experience and other factors.- -

The amount of exposure'to individual customers is subject to limits, which are reassessed regularly by the Board. Credit risk also
arises from cash and cash equlvalents with banks and fi nanmal institutions. Banking arrangements are reviewed and regularly
reassessed by the board.

(c) quu1d1ty risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the group’s liquidity reserve (comprising.
undrawn borrowing facility-and cash and cash equivalents) on the basis of expected cash flow. In addition, the group’s liquidity
management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to
meet these; monitoring balance sheet llqundlty ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements; and maintaining debt
financing plans.

4 'Ca'p'ital risk‘vmanagement

The group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The group mornitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capita] Net debt
is calculated as total borrowmgs (current and non-current) as shown in the group balance sheet less cash and cash equnvalents
Total capital is calculated as equity as shown in the group balance sheet plus net debt. .
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 Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 Septemtber 2017 (continued)

C &

4 * Capital risk management (continued)

* The gearing ratios at 30 September were as follows:

| 2017, L2016
Group ' £ , £
Total borrowings (note 17) 18,928,182 . 24,340,785
Less: cash and cash equivalents (note 16) (31,381,277) (30,682,837)
Net funds (12,453,095) (6,342,052)
Total equity 377,982,161 355,322,294
Total capital 365,529,066 348,980,242
Gearing ratio (3.4%)

(1.8%)

The group’s strategy is to maintain an appropriate mix of debt and equity consistent with fulfilling long-term growth plans.

5 Expenses by’nature

2017 ~ 2016
Group £ o £
Changes in inventories of ﬁmshed goods and work in progress (1,241,205) (3,816,357)
Raw materials and consumables used- 140,623,146 126,975,191
Employee benefits expense - net of capitalised software development costs (note 7) 217,516,912 183,086,912
Deprecnatlon and amortisation 22,302,414 20,802,679
_Operating fease payments 5,575,200 4,584,448
Transfer from capital grant reserve.(note 19) (1,807,467) (1,996,447)
Revenue grants (2,554,720) (2,042,157)
(Profit)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equ1pment and mtanglbles (4,336) 1,620
Other expenses* ' : 116,835,514 92,553,516
- Total cost of sales, distribution costs, administrative expenses and research : -
- and development expenditure 497,245,458 420,149,405

*Research and development expenditure of £8,205,011 (2016: £7,379,988) is included within other expenses and is stated after
- the deduction of £1,220,416 (2016:£826,185) of research and development tax credits. A further £1,691,051 (2016 £1,628,591)

of research and development tax credits has been deducted from other expenses.

Sérvices provided by the group and company’s auditors and its associates

Durmg the year the group (mcludmg its overseas subsidiaries) obtained the fo]lowmg services from the group s auditor and lts

associates: -

. 2017. 2016
Group _ £ £
Fees payable to the group’s auditors for the audit of parent company and _ 13,319 12,807
consolidated financial statements -
Fees payable to the group’s auditors and its associates for other services: ‘ )

- the audit of the company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 215,297 .1-9.1,8.1_3
- tax services o 421,393 '26_9,333' '
78,578 53,238

- other services
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Notes to the ﬂnancnal statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (contmued)

-6 Finance costs - net:

2017

2016

'Group £ £ '
]nterest expense: ] . .
Interest payable on bank borrowmgs (641,456) ) (696,560)
Interest_payable on related party loans (43,405) 1 (60,345)
Interest payable on otﬁer loens (56,455) . (55,244)
Interest payable on finance leases (14,104) -(33,441)
Forelgn exchange losses on fnancmg actlvmes (289,789) -
© Other f inance costs , (1’0'8,752) (237,469)
Finance costs {1,153,961) (1,083,059)
Interest income: - )
Interest receivable on bank deposits A 9,148 28,024
Fofeign exchange gains on ﬁnanciﬁg activities . 765,620
Finance income . 9,148 . 793,644
. Finance costs - net (1,144,813) (289,415)
7 Employees and directors : .
. - Group ' Company
. 2017 2016 2017 2016
Group and Company , ' £ £ £ £
Staff costs during the year: ’ , ) o
Wages and salaries (including capitalised software 193,945,483 163,381,196 15,320,188 " 14,408,866
development costs) ‘. B o
Social security costs 16,356,076 14,572,182 1,556,833 1,827,228
Other pension costs (note 24) - . 5,162,454 4,411,928 488,277 - 473,285
Share based payment costs (note 28) 2,620,080 1,273,193 534,835 © 158,445
‘ 218,084,093 183,638,499 17,900,133 16,867,824
The wages and salary costs includes £567,181 (2016: £551,587) of capitalised labour costs.
Group i Company
: . 2017 2016 2017. 2016
o Group and Company ' . Number * Number £ £'
Average monthly number. of persons employed
(including directors) durmg the year by activity: ’
Production : 3,445 3,09? - -
Sales and-marketing i ’ 179 145 - -
* Administration ' _ 712 665 325 . 291
Reseéfch_ and development ; ' 71 66 ' - -
4,407 3,975 325 291
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued) .

7 Employees and directors (continued)

Key management compensation

2017 2016
AGro‘up C . - B . £ £
Salaries and other short term embloyee benefits A S 8,668,542 8,144,117
Péension costs - defined contr‘i'butiOns plans : L 234,'62;7' ‘ 300,971'
The key management compensation given above includes directors and senior managers. _
L ‘ ’ ' 2017 £ 2016
Di'rectbrs . - a ) | £ . 3
Aggregate emoluments . v 1,637,743 1,826,844
‘ 125,852

Pensnon costs - defined contrnbutlons plans . ' 59,859

Four (2016: ﬁve) dlrectors have retirement benefits accruing under a defned contribution plan. Four (2016: fve) directors

'have exerCISed phantom share options in the year.

2017 12016

. Highest paid director . ’ . £ - £
Aggregate emoluments ' i 532,706 . 516,758 -
Pension costs - défined contributions plans o ' - 14,985

The highest paid director exercised phantom share options in the year and during the previous year.

8  Income tax expense . .

' : ' 2017 - 2016

£ £

Current tax . k .
UK corporation tax 4,848,150 . 8:159,450
Overseas tax - : . 250,892 260,546
Adjustment in respect of previous years ' ©(478,449) (290,472)
Total current tax expense — : 4,620,593 8,129,524
Deferred tax , ' . ‘

_ Origination and reversal of temporary differences 943,516 (452,568)
Impairment of deferred tax asset charged to the income statement ‘ 625,969 5:,053,454_
Changes in tax laWs and rates ' . (200,376) (647,58']')

- Adjustment in regpept of previous years - - ' - 333,941 .35~,223
Total deferred tax charge (note 13) ' 1,703,050 3,988,528
. ~ Income tax expense ' 6,323,643

12,118,052
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Notes to the financial staternents for the year-ended 30 September 2017 (continued).

8 Income tax expense (continued)

The tax on the group ’s profit before income tax differs from (2016: differs from) the theoretical amount that would arise using
_the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolldated entities as follows:

2017 L 2016

. _ ;o ' i £
Profit before incometax . , 33,031,456 26,785,268
Profit before i income tax at the UK standard rate of 19 5% (20]6 20%) 6,441,134 . 5,357,054
Effects of: k . '
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes C . 66,015 ’ . 3,123,695

- Income not taxable , A ‘ (576,861) © (380,389)

 Effect of overseas tax rates - o - o .(40,112) - -
Movemerit in deferred tax not prowded . _— o 34278 l 2,138,364

~ Group reliefnot paid = . . 74,993 - 70,876
'AdJustments in respect of prevnous periods - current tax , (478,449) ' ' _(290,4725
Adjustments in respect of previous periods - deferred tax . 333,941 35,233
Chanées in tax laws and rates . : I ' (200,376) » (647,581) ‘
Impaitﬁ*nent of deferred tax asset charged to the income statement , - - ' .5,,053,454
Deferred tax asset not recegnised 625,969 - -
Utilisation of tax losses not previously recognfséd as a deferred tax asset ' (3,743) : (2,269,880)
Accelerated capital allowances . 6,742 (32,190)

Income tax expense . 6,323,643 12,811,052
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. Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued) =

9. Property, 'plaht and equipment

At 30 September 2015

‘Fixtures,
' fittings
: Assets in the and : :

. Land and course of Plant and computer Motor . .

_ buildings  construction  machinery equipment . vehicles " Total
Group ' £ £ £ £ £ £
Cost
At'1 October 2015 - 186,750,128 21,634 71,576,464 34,370,864 -357,603 A293,076,693 A
Acquisitions - 411,886 - 1,150,814 9,727 ' - 1,572,427

" Transfers (260,167) (21,634) 13,498 268,303 - -
Additions - 2,047,319 10,907,450 9,226,539 6,062,044 38,131 - 28,281,483
Disposals- (247,540) - (410) (148,346) (46,697) (442,993)
Exchange adjustment 13,867,621 ° - 2,285,896' 2,223,964 42,_0.42‘ ] 18,419.,523
At 1 October 2016 A202,569,247 10,907,450 84,252,801 42,786,556 391,079 340,907,133 ‘
Transfers - (644,403) 644,403 145,592 - 145,592
* Additions 2,650,683 13,235,960 11,424,202 4,830,106 44,083 32,185,034
Disposals (20,295) - (605,691) (133,153) (45,882) (810,021)
Exchange adjustment (2,895,063) (19,790) (423,714) (556,751) (8,440) (3,903,758)
At 30 September 2017 202,304,572 23,479,217 95,292,001 47,067,350 380,840 368,523,980
Accumulated depreciation'and aggregate impairments
At 1 October 2015 28,352,812 . - 45,001,991 23,193,097 293,775 96,841,675
* Charge for the year 4,903,948 - 5,705,694 3,328,660 22,435 13,960,737 -

Transfers ' (45,592) ; ; 45,592 . .
Disposals (816) - (38) (76,162) (43,164) - (120,180)
Exchange adjustment 1,774,632 ; 1,123,080 1,655,516 40,149 4,593,377
At 1 October 2016 - 34,984,984 - 51,830,727 28,146,703 313,195 = 115,275,609
Charge for the year 5,201,054 - 5,954,610 3,760,054 30,293 14,946,011
Disposals - - (210,405) (56,977) (45,882) (313,264)
_Exchange adjustment (526,015) - (301,173) (461,306) (8,205) - (1,296,699)
At 30 September 2017 39,660,023 - 57,273,759 31,388,474 289,401 128,611,657
‘Net book amount _ A . .
At 30 Se;}tember 2017 162,644,549. 23,479,217 38,018,242 - 15,678,877 91,439 239,912,323
At 30 September 2016 "~ 167,584,263 10,907,450 32,422,074 14,639,853 77,884 225,631,524

158,397,316 21,634 . 26,574,473 11,177,767 63,828 .- 196,235,018

Bofrowings totalling £16,894,992 (2016: £21,4v90,455) are secured against fhe above assets (note 17).

Interest costs of£ml (2016: £nil) were capitalised during the year. Cumulative interest capitalised at 30 September 2017 was
£1,082, 549 (2016 £1, 082,549). .

- Depremataon expense is included within administrative expenses in the income statement.



Almac Group Limited

33

‘Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued) ‘

9 - Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Assets held under finance ‘leases had the following net book amount:

Fixtures,
fittings and : '
Plant and computer 2017. 2016
I ' Machinery equipment Total Total
Group ' ‘ £ £ £ £
TCost - - _ 143,765 3,945,224 4,088,989 4,304,251 .
Accumulated depreciation ' i (37,725) (2,970,072) (3,007,797) (2,762,365)
Net bQOR amount ) 106,040 - 975,152 1,081,192 1 1,641,886
Fixtures,
fittings and :
Land and Plant and computer Motor :

. . buildings Machinery equipment vehicles Total
Company ) : B 4 N £ £ R
Cost , ) . ‘

At 1 October 2015 ' ) 2,931,455 1,850,386 4,101,796 © 43,513 ‘ 8,927,150
Additions S 959,799 21,200 1,882,203 10,975 2,874,177
‘Disposals - , . (20410) (410) (72,000) - (92,820).
At 1 October 2016 3870844 1871176 5,011,099 54,488 11,708,507
" Transfers : [ - 145,592 B 145,592
~ Additions . 143,576 91,507 1,536,228 15,890 1,787,201

. Disposals ‘ ‘ (20,295) ©(1,189) (138,153) S (159,637)
. At 30 September 2017 . 3,994,125 1,961,494 7,455,666 70,378 . 13,481,663
Accumulated depreciation : _
‘At 1 October 2015 : 164,639 © 1,149,807 1,771,444 36,357 3,12\2,247 -
Charge for the year 48,887 177,784 642,940 2,318 871,929
Disposals ' , (816) (38) . : (854)

- At 1 October 2016 . . 212,710 1,327,553 2,414,384 38,675 3,993,322 .
Charge for the year 48,877 143,951 778,444 6,250 977,522
Disposals L - (1,189) (56,977) - (58,166) °
At 30 September 2017 261,587 1,470,315 3,135,851 44,925 4,912,678
Net book amount . . : , ‘ '

At30 September 2017 3,732,538 491,179 4,319,815 25,453 - 8,568,985

TAT30 September 2016 3,658,134 543,623 3,497.615 15,813 7,715,185
At 30 September 2015 - 2,766,816 700,579 - 2,330,352 7,156 5,804,903

Borrowings4tota'lling'£1,2,920,336 (2016: £16,391,458) are secured against the above assets (note 17).

Depreciation expense is included within administrative expenses in the income statement. -
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9 Property, plant and equlpment (contin ued)

Assets held under ﬁnance Ieases had the following net book amount: - .
‘ ‘ Fixtures, Fixtures,

fittings and fittingsand
' computer computer -
equipment equipment
. . - 2017 . 2016
Company , . . - £ £
Cost o : \ , ‘ 629,500 - -+629,500 -
Accumulated depreciation ’ 4 : - (480,825) . (354,925)
“Netbookamount - T 148,675 274,575 -
10 Goodwill
" Group . . ‘ ' . o ’ . I£
Cost ' : _ . ' '
At 1 October 2015 S . 66,719,496
On acquisition . : ‘ : : S 661,613
* Exchange adjustment : ' _ : ' 4,193,813
At 1 October 2016 _ - 71,574,922
.Exchange adjustment . ' (900,164)
At 30 September 2017 - ‘ 70,674,758
Accum‘ulaﬁed amortisation and impairment ] o :
At 1 October 2015 and 1. October 2016 and at 30 September 2017 . , 4,910,114
Net book amount . .
At 30 September 2017 . ' ) o . 65,764,644 A
At 30 September 2016 ’ : 66,664,808
At 30 September 2015 61,809,382

Goodwill.relates to the group’s clinical services business. The group’s clinical services business, together with the UK clinical
services business in Almac Group (UK) Limited, is regarded-as a cash-generating unit (CGU). The recoverable amount of a
CGU is determined based on value in use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management and covering a five year period. Growth rates of 2 to 26% (2016: 2 to 26%) with a consistent

' ~ gross margin were used for the five year period. Cash flows beyond the five year period are established using estimated growth

rates of 2% (20.16: 2%), which do not exceed the long term average growth rate for the industry in which thé CGU operates.
Management determined budgeted gross margins based on past performance and its expectations of market developments. The
discount rate used of 11% (2016: 11%) is pre-tax and reflects specific nsks relating to the group. There is sufficient headroom
in the impairment calculation.
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11 -Other intangible assets

- Product Computer

o . - B A licences software : ' Total
Group . ) . . : S £ R . S
Cost N ‘ A .
At 1 October 2015 o S 26,900,030 | 53,282,435 80,182,465
Additions : : ‘ . 509,464 14,653,515 5,162,979
'Excriangeac_ijustmeni B 523,682 2,590,764 - 3,114,446
At 1 October 2016 o 27,933,176 60,526,714 88,459,890
* Transfers h : - - - (145,592). (145,592)
Additions - , ' - 985,764 3,868,750 . 4,854,514
" Disposals - ' : S (29.934) . (29,934)
‘Exchange gdjustmeﬁt : ' (113,290) (569,724) ' " ' (683,014)
"At 30 September 2017 28,805,650 - 63,650,214 - 92,455,364
" Accumulated amortisation . ) . ' . .
At1 October 2015 | . - 19,948,352 21,890,761 41,839,113
Amortisation in the year A ' 1,105,321 . 5,736,621 6,841,942
Exchange adjustment  * ' ’ 122,358 . 1,492,392 1,614,750 -
At1 October 2016 , 21,176,031 29,119,774 50,295,805
Amortisation in the year ) o 1,288,945 6,067,458 7,356,403
Disposals o - ) -o- (9,281) (9;281)
Exchange adjustment - ‘ | : (47,922)° - (442,955) (490,877)
At 30 September 2017 T 2,417,054 34,734,996 57,152,050
Net book :_nﬁount ‘
At 30 September 2017 - 6,388,596 28915218 35,303,814
At 30 September 2016 6,757,145 31,406,940 38,164,085
At 30 September 2015 : 6,951,678 31,391,674 . 38,343,352

Amortisation expense is included within administrative expenses in the income statement.

" The transfer of assets réprese‘nté software under development moving into computer equipment Within-property, plant and
‘equipment. . .
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" 11  Other intangible assets (continued) :
I .o o - Computer

. . . ) software
. Company - . . £
- Cost - - . 4
At 1 October 2015 - ' ; . ' 4,389,746
Additions. - | ~ ‘ : T 651,711
"TAt1 October 2016 ' - - 5041457

" Transfers ' ' ' , S (145,592)
Additions . - R 433,648
Disposals : _ T (29,934)
At3:0 September 2017 R i : '_ T 5‘,299,579"
Accumulated amortisation _ :

At 1 October 2015 L ‘ 4 12,750,688
Amortisation in the year . - 732,308
At 1 October 2016 . ‘ , 3,482,996 .
Amortisation in the yea} L . ' ) - : . ’ 504,905
Disposals (9,281)
At30 Septerber 2017 - - | 3,978,620
_Net book ambunt . ) )
'At 30 September 2017 ‘ ' : . ‘ ©1,320959
At30 September 2016 A ‘ 7,558,461

At 30 September 2015 A . ; 1,639,058

Amortisation expense is included within administrative expenses in the income statement.
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.12 Investments in subsidiaries

Company I : A o s
Cost ; _ . . T . o -

At1October2015 - . . : ‘ ‘ L 175,042,529
Additions ' , S 50,545
TAt1 October 2016 . - ' : 3 175,093,074 -
Additions - . ‘ - - o

At30 September 2017 . ' - 175,093,075

Provisions for impairment

At 1 October 2015, 1 October 2016 and 30 September 2017 X 1,692,057

Net book amount . .
At 30 September 2017 : 4 o 173,401,018

At 30 September 2016 ; . ‘ 173,401,017 |

At 30 September 2015 | 173,350,472

Invéstments in Subsidiary undertakirigs are recorded at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration paid, less any
provisions for impairments. The subsidiaries of the group at 30 September 2017 were:

Proportion of Proportion of

: ordinary - ordinary

. Couantry of . shares held - shares held

Name - incorporation - Nature of business by the parent by the group

_Almac Discovery Limited Co Northern Ireland' Discovery and C
e development of 100% a 100% -
innovative approaches : ) :
to the treatment of
. cancer . :
Almac Diagnostics Limited Northern Ireland’ Development of cancer 1% o 99%
- : diagnostics and :
microarray based data
. ) analysis : ) i .
Almac Diagnostics LLC . United States of Development of cancer : 0% 100%
o o ‘ America'® diagnostics and ’
microarray based data
. analysis
Almac Sciences Limited - Northern Ireland! Provision of custom 0% 100%
' : ‘ chemical synthesis : '
: . - services .
Almac Sciences LLC : 7 United States of Provision of custom - 0% 100%
. ' : America'® chemical synthesis : ’
services
Almac Sciences (Scotland) Limited Scotland® Provision of custom 0% . 100%
S ' ' chemical synthesis o
o : : services’ . . .
- "Almac Clinical Services Limited - Northern Ireland! Provision of services to : 0% ‘ 100%
- o pharmaceutical and :
biotechnology
T - companies .
* Almac Clinical Services LLC e United States of Provision of services to. 0% 100%
o - ‘ America'® pharmaceutical and I
’ biotechnology
L : ) - " companies -
Almac Cliﬁical. Technologies LLC United States of Management of clinical 0% ) 100%
C America'® trials drug supply o
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. Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued) .

12 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

RN

Name

Country of ~
incorporation

Nature of business

Proportion of
ordinary

shares held
by the parent

Proportion of
. .ordinary

_ shares held
by the group

Almac Clinical Technologies Limited

Almac Pharma Services Limited
Almac Pharma Services LLC
! .
Galen Limited
" Almac Central Management LLC

Almac Pharmaceutical Services PTE Ltd
" Almac Pharmaceutical Services KK

Almac Group (Asia) PTE Ltd
Almac Group (UK) Limited
Almac Group Incorporated

Almac Sciences Incorporated
. 1

Almac (No. 2) Limited
* Galen US Incorporated

. Novis Pharma Limited
Napsco Limited
CTS Analytical Limited
Syngal Limited

] Quchém'Lir.nited' .
Almac Diagnostics (2004) Limited
Almac Trustees Limited = .

2007 Gal Limited
. InterGal Pharma Limited

© Almac (No. 1) Limited

Nelag Limited
: Cﬁargelink Limited

Northern Ireland’

Northern Ireland’

" United States of

America'®

- Northern Ireland"

United States of
America'®

Singapore’

Japan®

Singapore’ .
Northern Ireland!

United States of
America'®
United States of
America'
Northern Ireland'

United States of
America'?

Northern Ireland!
Northern Ireland !

" Northern Ireland!

Northern Ireland'

Northern Ireland"
Northern Ireland'
Northern Ireland'A
Northern Ireland’

Northern Ireland!

Northern Ireland!

Northern Ireland'

England®
England®

Management of clinical
trials drug supply
Manufacture of
pharmaceutical
products

Manufacture of
pharmaceutical
products

Distribution and sale of
pharmaceutical
products

Central administrative

- services for the US

group
Provision of services to
pharmaceutical and
biotechnology
companies

Provision of services to
pharmaceutical and
biotechnology

* companies

Holding company .
Holding company
Holding company

Dormant company

Dormant company

Distribution and sale of
pharmaceutical
products

Dormant company

. Dormant company

Dormant company

Dormant company

" Dormant company -

Dormant company
Holding company
Dorn;ant company
Dormant company
Dormant company
Dormant company
Dormant company

Dormant company

0%

- 0%

50%

0%

0% .

0%

100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
0%

0%
0%

0%

0%

0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%

100%

100%
- 100%
- 100%

100%. ’

. 100%
100%

100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
" 100%

100% .

. 100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%

" 100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%

Galen Pharmaceuticals Limited
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Notes.to the ﬁnan_éial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued) .

12 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Name

Country of
incorporation

Nature of business

Proportion of

ordinary
shares held
by the parent

Proportion of -
) ordinary
shares held.
by the group

Galen Healthcare Limited
Galen Rhodes Limited
Galen Specialty Pharma US LLC

Almac Realty Holdings LLC
Clinical Trial Services Incorporated
- AApplied Clinical Concepts Incorporéted

Arran Chemical Combany Limited

[y

Ventureland Limited

Almac Pharmaceuticals Group (Ireland)
Limited
Almac Pharma Services (Ireland) Limited

Almac Clinical Services (Ireland) Limited

Almac.Sciences (Ireland) Limited
.MPI Europharma Limited-

I

England®
England®

United States of
America'®

United States of
America'® ‘
United States of
America'?

United States of .
America®

Republic of Ireland?

Republic of Ireland?
Republic of Ireland*

Republic of Ireland?
Republic of Ireland?

Republic of Ireland*
Republic of Ireland?

Dormant company
Dormant company
Dormant company

Holding company
Dormant company
Dormant company

Manufacture of
pharmaceutical
products

Dormant company

Holding company

Provision of services to
pharmaceutical and
biotechnology
companies

Provision of services to
pharmaceutical and
biotechnology-
companies

Dormant company

Provision of services to
pharmaceutical and
biotechnology
companies

0%
0%
0%

0%

0% -

0% -

0%

0%

100%

0%

0%

0%
0%

100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100% -
100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

'.The registered office of these entities is Almac House, 20 Seagoe Industrial Estate, Craigavon BT63 5QD

2The registered office of these entities is Units'1-3 Monksland Industrial Estate, Athlone Co. Roscommon, N37

- DN24

3The registered office ofthese entities is anabalr Industrial Estate, Dundalk Co. Louth, A91 P9KD
“The registered office of these entities is Riverside One, Sir John Rogerson’s Quay, Dublin 2, D02 X576

5The registered office of this entity is Suite 2, Stafford House, Strand Road, Portmarnock Co Dublin, D13 H525

-5The registered office of these entities is Broadwalk House; 5 Appold Street, London, EC2A 2HA

"The registered office of these entities is Lee & Lee, 50 Raffles Place, #60-00, Singapore Land Tower, Smgapore

048623 "

8The registered office of this entity is Tokyo Club Building, 11F, 3-2-6 Kasumigaski, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, 100-0013
" °The registered office of this entity is 4th Floor, Saltire Court, 20 Castle Terrace, Edinburgh, Lothian, EHI'2EN

1°The registered office of these entities is Corporation Service Company, 2711 Centrevnlle Rd, Suite 400,

Wilmington, Delaware, DE 19808

""The registered office of this-entity is 327 Hillsborough Street, Raleigh, NC 27603
12The registered office of this entity is CSC, 103 Foulk Road, Suite 103, Wilmington, DE 19803 - 3742
B3The registered office of this entity is 011 Allen Building, Durham, NC 27708
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. Notes to the fmancnal statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (contmued)

13 Deferred income tax .

" The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

Liabilities

) _ Assets Total .

: o : . 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 -
Group - - £ £ £ £ £ £
"TAt1 October T 2,636399 4366006 (8,927,119)  (6,469,136) . (6,290,720) (2,102,230
Exchange adjustment . ; 76,124 74,052 (217,935) 74,052 (141,811)
On acqﬁisition - ' - - - (58,151) ' - : _(58,1541).
(Charged)/credited tothe - (493,668) (1.806,631)  (1,209382)  (2,181,897)  (1,703,050)  (3,988,528)
income statement . ' ’ . .
At 30 September . 2,142,731 2,636,399 (10,062,449) (8,927,119) _ (7,919,718)  (6,290,720)
o 2017 2016
Company £ £ .
‘At 1 October 395,010 147,495
" Credited to the income statement 356,332 247,515
At 30 September . 751,342 395,010

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the year, without taking mto consideration the offsetting of

balances within the same tax jurisdiction is as follows:

Accelerated Other
capital Tax temporary
. allowances losses differences Total
Group - deferred tax (liabilities)/assets £ £ £ £
At 1 October 2015 _ - (20,570,693) 17,476,089 992,374 (2,102,230)
Credited/(c'harged)‘ to the income statement , 269,807 (5,332,193) 1,073,858 (3,988,528)
On acquisition : ‘ (58,151) ’ - - (58,151)
Exchange adjustments : , (523,861) 301,199 80,851  (141,811) -
At.1 October 2016 * (20,882,898) 12,445,095 2,147,083 (6,290,720)
Credited/(charged) to the income statement | (804,712) (1,436,296) 537,958 (1,703,050)
Exchange adjustments , 74,052 - - 74,052
At 30 September 2017 ) (21,613,558) 11,008,799 2,685,041 (7,919,718)
" Within other tempdrary differeﬁces, £983,612 relates to employee benefits (2016: £912,488).
v Accelerated ‘Other
capital temporary
. . . allowances differepce; Total
Company - deferred tax assets. £ ) £ £
At 1 October 2015 (171,762) 319,257 147,495
Adjustmeiits in respect of prior periods (12,678) (48,026) (60,704)
(Charged)/credited to the income statement (14,130) ' 322,349 .308,2]9
At 1 Oetdber 2016 . (198,570) 593,580 .. 395,010
(Charged)/credlted to the income statement (44,879) ‘ 401,»211 356,332
At 30 September 2017 (243,499) 994,‘791 751,342
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'Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (contmued)

13 -Deferred i income tax (contmued)

l The analysns of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

Group -Company. _
2017 2016 ©2017 © 2016
o £ £ £ £
Deferred tax assets: . ) ' . ‘
- to be recovered after more than 12 months . 2,142,731 - 994,791, ~ -
- to be recovered within 12 months , - 2/636,399 C - - 593,580
2,142,731 2,636,399 - 994,791 593,580:
Deferred tax llabllltleS :
- to be.recovered after more than 12 months ‘ (9,156,172) (1,197,924) (-2%13,449)‘ ) -
- to be recovered w1th|n 12 months ‘ (906,277) (7,729,195) - - (]98’570)
. B . (10,062,449) (8,927,119) (243,449) (198,570)
Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets — net (7,919,718) (6,290,720) 751,342 395,010

. ° . ! . . .
Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable
_benefits is probable. Deferred income tax assets not recognised are comprised as follows:

Group ~ Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
. £ £ .8 £
Accelerated capital allowances 235,411 2,562 168,361 -
Tax losses - - S ' 14,997,403 18,797,488 S -
" Other temporary differences 320,535 225,981 ’ - -
' ' ‘ ' 15,553,349 19,026,031 68,361 ’ -

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to the above as in the opinion of the directors it may not be recoverable in
the foreseeable future. The potential deferred tax assets will be recognised when it can be regarded as more likely than not that
there will be sufficient taxable profits from which the tax losses, accelerated capital allowances and other temporary differences
can be deducted.

14 Inventories

_ 2017 2016

Group ‘ , ‘ _ £ N
- "Raw materials = 11,169,323 - 9,593,020

Work in progress ’ 1,912,594 . 1,452,191

Finished goods : ‘ ' . 11,581,684 - 10,800,882

' ‘ 24,663,601 21,846,093

Movement in Inventory provis'ion : »
: 2017 2016
, _ _ g . £

At1October 2016 -~ — 2,012,109 1,997,193

Prov1510n for’ lmpalrment S . 212,764 S v1'4,9l‘6'

At 30 September 2017 . 2224873 2,012,109

' The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost of sales amounted to £139,381,941 (2016: £123,158,834).
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15 Trade and other feceivables , o
' ' o : Group : Company-

2017 2016, 2017 2016
S . £ £ ¢
Trade receivables | . 100,167,605 91,889,481 ‘ ; -
Less:“provision for impairment of trade receivables (2,803,631)  (1,336,348) i ' -
Trade receivables (net) 97,363,974- 90,553,133 N . -
Amounts owed by group undertakmgs (note 30) - ' - 2.28,704,56-1 . 214,524,704 .
Group relief receivable - - 218,405 E -
Other receivables - : ) : _ 7,099,039‘ 3,432,774 3,378,671 85,871
Prepayments and accrued income - 28,822,417 18,912,765 . 3,551,521 1,665,588

133,285,430 112,898,6724 235,853,158  216,2,76,163

 Trade receivables includes an amount of £4,726,450 (2016: £4,674,516) in respect of receivables subject to invoice discounting.

_ The fair values of trade and other receivables are not materially different from their carrying value. For the purposes of [FRS 7
“Financial instruments: Disclosures”, all of the group’s and parent company’s financial assets are classified as loans and
- receivables or available-for-sale. The group and parent company have no assets that are classified as held at fair value through

‘ . profit and loss, or held to maturity.

The carrymg amount ofthe group s and parent company’s trade and other receivables are denommated in the followmg
currencies:

Group "~ Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
‘ £ £ S £
Currency
UK pound 'sterling . _ 63,845,802 64,380,653 114,698,153 - 117,492,334
US dollar ' _ i . 62,178,286 . 43,465,930 120,687,167 ' 98,783,829

Euro . ‘ 7,261,342 5,052,089 467,838 -
' ' ' 133,285,430 112,898,672 235,853,158 216,276,163

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivable above.

Trade receivables impaired and the amount of the impairment provision at 30 September 2017 was £2,803,631 (2016:
£1,336,348). The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to invoices for which there is uncertainty over recoverability.
It was assessed that a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered. The trade receivables that were lmpalred were all ,
overdue by-more than two months. .
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Notes to the ﬁnancnal statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (contmued) »

15.. Trade and other receivables (contmued)

- Movements on the provnslon for impalrment of trade receivables are as follows:

Group '

‘Compan'y' )

© 2017 2016 2017 2016
‘ £ £ s St
TAt T October 1336348 1,410,982 : -
" Exchange adjustment_ (31,445) 127,292 - -
- Provision for receivables impairment 1,706,191 145,088 - -
. Reqeivablles written off during the year as uncollectible (25,083) (140,012) - -
Unused amounts reversed . (182,380) (207,002) - -
' 2,803,631 1,336,348 - -

At 30 September

- The creation and release of the provision for impaired receivables has been included in administrative expenses in the income

statement.

As of 30 September 2017 trade receivables of £21,841,530 (2016: £14,124,643) weré past due but not impaired. - These and
other trade receivables relate to a number of large multinational companies and public institutions for which there is little risk

~ of default.

The aged analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

Company

Group
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ s £ ) £
Up to two months overdue 17,780,536 11,533,266 . -
- More than two months overdue 4,060,994 . 2,591,377 . -
21,841,530 14,124,643 ; ;

None of these trade recelvables have had their terms re-negotiated. The other classes within trade and other recewables do not

contain impaired assets

16  Cash and cash equivalents '
: : ' Group - Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
, £ £ £ £
" Cash at bank and inhand _ 24,866,039 23,000,619 4,016,972 4,511,824
Short term deposits 6,515,238 7,682,218 L ' ;
A31,381,‘277 30,682,837 4,016,972 4,51 1,824 ’
Cash and cash eqhiyalents include the following for the purposes of the eash flow statement:
Group Company
2017 - 2016 2017 C 20160
o £ £ £ A
Cash~a,nd Cash'equi\(alents : 31,381,277 30,682,837 4,016,972 . ' 4,511,824 -
Bank overdrafts (note 17) (1,789,110) (2,021,143) R -
29,592,167 28,661,694 4,016,972 . 4,511,824
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Notes to the financial statelnents for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)

17 Bo‘rrowings

Group ' o Company

. 2017 2016 2017 © 2016

- Current : ' i ' - £ £ - £ £
Bank overdrafts - secured (a) ' 1,789,110 2,021,143 - L
Bank loans - secured (a) . ) 3,812,436 3,510,405 3,415,421 3,116,559
_ Other loans - secured o 267,427 355,487 ) - . 92,757
- Amounts owed to group undertakings (b) (note 30) - - - 188,328,131 161,071,761
" Amounts owed to related parties (c) (note 30) 1,229,605 817,140 357,140 © - 357,140
Finance lease obligations (d) : . 450,645 556,046 279,899 370,116
' 7,549,223 7,260,221 192,380,591 . 165,008,333

Bank loans and overdrafts incl.udes an amount of £nil (2016: £nil) in respect of receivables subject to -in_voice,diseounting.
Group ‘ Company

2017 2016 2017 2016
Non-current L ' £ £ £ £
Bank loans - secured (a) . 10,213,062 13,961,895 9,157,092 12,464,203
Other loans - secured 226,505 493,932 . S
Amounts owed to group undertakings (b) (note 30) - - 1,160,725 - 9,017,865
Amounts owed to related parties (c) (note 30) 803,585 2,033,190 803,585 1,160,725
_ Finance lease obligations (d) 135,807 591,547 67,924 347,823
' 11,378,959 17,080,564 11,189,326 22,990,616
Total borrowings . ‘ 18,928,182 24,340,785 203,569,917 187,998,949

_(a)  Bank loans consist of the following amounts which refer to loan agreements entered into in 2011 and amended in 2012,

2013 and 2016:

Group

A loan of $3.6m- and an additional $1.2m advanced in 2012. This loan is repayable over 28 quarters commencing

September 2011 with a review after 5 years in June 2016 and interest is charged at LIBOR + margin. The review in June

2016 was compieted and the remaining loan balance is repayable over 19 quarters commencing September 2016.

Group and parent company:

(|) A loan of $46.3m. This loan is repayable over 28 quarters commencing September 2011 with a review after 5 years -
in June 2016 and interest is charged at LIBOR + margin. During 2014, $16m was converted into a new sterling loan
of £9.9m. The loan of £9.9m is repayable over 16 quarters commencing December 2013 with a review in June 2016
and interest is charged at LIBOR + margin. The reviews in June 2016 were completed and the remaining loan balances

are repayable over 20 quarters.

(ii) A‘loan of £15.0m. This loan is repayable over 28 quarters commencing September 2011 with a review after § years
in June 2016 and interest is charged at LIBOR + margin. The review in June 2016 was completed and the remammg

loan balance is repayable over 20 quarters.

The above loans are secured against assets within the group.

-(b)  Parent company: £180,470,991 (2016: £160,714,621) is owed to group undertakings. Interest is- charged at LIBOR + -

margin, and the loans are repayable on demand.

: £1 ,517,865 (2016 £l 875 ;005) is owed to the Almac Employee Benefit Trust. Interest is charged at UK- base rate plus .

1%. The loan is being repaid in quarterly instalments which commenced in March 2015. £7,500,000 (2016: £7,500,000)

"is owed to Galen Limited. Interest is charged at LIBOR plus a margm The loan is bemg repaid in quarter!y instalments

which will commence in August 2018.



Almac Group Limited

45

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)

-17  Borrowings (contmued)

(¢)  Group: £872,465 (20]6 £1,332,465) is owed to The McClay Foundatlon Interest is charged at UK base rate plus 2 5%.'
: Thls loan is repayable in annual instalments commencmg November 2014. :

Group and parent company:' An additional amount of £1 ,160,725 (2016: £1,517,865) is owed:to The McClay Foundation.
Interest is charged at UK base rate plus 1%. The loan is being repaid in quarterly instalments from December 2014.

(d)  Finance leases are secured on the assets to which they relate.

The fair value ‘of both current-and non-current borrowings equals.their carrymg amount as the lmpact of discounting is not

significant. -

For the 'purposes of IFRS 7 “Financial instruments: Disclosures”,

the financial liabilities noted above are ClaSSlﬁed as, other

financial liabilities. The group has no liabilities that may be ClaSSlfled as held at fair value through profit and loss.

The carrying amount ofthe group’s and the parent company’s borrowmgs is denominated in the follqwmg currencies: .

Group Company
2017 2016. 2017 2016
' £ £ £ £,
UK pound sterling 12,743,031 13,922,451 166,368,856 159,686,641
US dollar. 6,185,151 10,418,334~ 33357372 28,312,308
Euro ) - - 3,843,689 -
» 18,928,182 24,340,785 203,569,917 )87,998,949’
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows: 2017 201 6.
. © o . %
Bank overdrafts 2.00 - S.ﬁ) 2.00=3.00
Variable rate loans ‘ 1.35-2.85  135-285 -
Fixed rate loans 2.00 - 5.68 2.00-5.68
Finance leases 0.00 — 13.50 0.00 - 13.50
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Notes to the fmancnal statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (contlnued)

17 Borrowmgs (contmued)

Matunty of financial llabllltles

-The maturlty proﬁle of'the carrying amount of non-current borrowmgs at 30 September was as follows

Amounts
.Bank and owed to :
other related  Finance lease :
loans parties obligations Total
‘ 2017 2017 2017 2017
Group S 4 £ £ £
In more than one year but not more than two years 3,890,373 357,140 109,450 4,356,963
In more than two years but not more than five years 6,549,194 446,445 26,357 7,021,996 -
10,439,567 803,585 ' 135 807 11,378,959
Amounts
" Bank and owed to
other related Finance lease
loans parties obligations . Total
. 2016 2016 2016 2016
Group £ £ £ £
In more than one year but not more th_an two years 3,878,463 1,229,605 455,049 5,563,117
In more than two years but not more than five years 10,577,364 803,585 136,498 11,51 7,447
14,455,827 2,033,190 591,547 17,080,564
Amounts Amounts -
owed to owed to Finance
group related lease )
Bank loans undertakings parties obligations " Total
- ) 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
Company . ‘ . £ £ £ £ £
In more than one year but not more than 3,251,928 357,140 357,140 67,924 4,034,132
two years
In more than two years but not more '5,905,164 714,300 446,445 - 7,065,909
than five years ) Y : : .
In more than five years - 89,285 - - _ 89,285
' 9,157,092 1,160,725 803,585 67,924 11,189,326
Amounts
Amounts owed to Finance’
. owed to group related .. lease ’
Bank loans  undertakings parties obligations. Total
o 2016 . 2016 2016 2016 ..2016
- Company : S £ £ £ £ , N
In more than one year but not more 3,201,805 7,857,140 357,140 279,899 ° 11,695,984
~ thantwo years - : ' o -
-In more than two years but not more . 9,262,398 1,071,440 803,585 67,924 11,205,347
than five years ~ ' ’ .
In more than five years ) " - 89,285 ‘ - - 89,285
' 12,464,203 9,017,865 1,160,725 347,823 22,990,616
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued) -

17 , Bdrrpwings (continued)

The amounts included in the tables below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of current and non-current borrowings.

; Bank loans; Amounts
' . .other loans owed to Finance
‘ and bank related . lease -
overdraft parties  obligations Total
2017 2017 2017 2017
Group ‘ £ £ £ B
Less than one year 6,289,165 1,246,119 456,990 ' 7,992,274
-In more than one year but not more than two years 4,195,682 365,509 112,219 . 4,6'73,410 :
- In more than two years but not more than five years® 6,858,409 450,631 27,464 - 7,336,504
17,343,256 2,062,259 596,673 < 20,002,188
Bank loans, Amounts
other loans owed to . Finance
and bank related lease
overdraft parties  obligations Total
2016 2016 2016 2016
Group £ £ £ _ £
Less than one year , 5,962,288 836,379 _ 568,584 . 7,367,251
In'more than one year but not more than two years 4,233,701 1,244,379 461,715 5,939,795
In more'than two years but not more than five years 11,0.08,489 - 816,141 140,104 ‘11,964,734
21,204,478 2,896,899 1,170,403 25,271,780
: Amounts
Bank loans  Amounts owed owed to Finance
and to group related lease
overdrafts undertakings parties  obligations Total.
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
Company - ) . . £ £ £ £ )
. . £
Less than one year 3,783,174 189,250,181 369,973 279,899 193,683,227 .
In more than one year but not more 3,524,635 368,857 365,509 67,924 4,326,925
than two years ] , . .
In more than two years but not more - 6,914,587 724,342 450,631 - 7,369,560
than five years™ ' : ' C :
In more than five years - ‘ - 89,285 - - . 89,285
' 13,502,396 190,432,665 - 1,186,113 . 347,823 205,468,997
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17. Borrowmgs (contmued)

Amounts
Bank loans Amounts owed to Finance - . ,
and owed to group - related lease . Other’ .
overdrafts undertakings _parties  obligations " loans Total
' : A 2016 2016 2016 - 2016 2016 - 2016
. Company . £ - < £ . £ £ £ £
Less than one year 3,501,965 161,092,406 374,438 370,116 95,216 ~ 165,434,141
In more than one year butnot -~ 3,502,989 8,970,440 369,973 .279,899 A : .
more than two years ‘ o . - 13,123,301,
-In more than two years but not - 9,638,700 - 1,093,199 - 816,141 67,924 . ' A
more than five years . : - 11,615,964
In more than five years K - 89,285 - - © . 89,285
’ 16,643,654 171,245,330 1,560,552 717,939 95216 190,262,691
The minimum lease/payments under finance leases fall due as follows:
: - Group "~ Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
] A ) £ S £ ) £ . £
Not later than one year _ 456,990 568,584 279,899 - 370,116
Later than one year but not more than five years 139,683 601,819 67,924 . 347,823
‘ 596,673 1,170,403 347,823 717,939
Future finance charges on finance leases ‘ (10,221) (22,810) - ‘ -
Present value of finance lease liabilities - 586,452 1,147,593 347,823 .. 717,939
18 Trade an’d'oth'er payables : '
Group Company-
2017 2016 2017 2016
. ot £ £ IR -
Trade payables . . 25,523,372 30,572,881 1,782,006 - 683,355
Amounts owed to group undertakings (note 30) - ) - 12,334,238 © 11,425,540
Group relief payable (note 30) » ' - ’ - - 1,443,751
Other tax and social security ’ 3,798,197 2,766,480 1,269,117 - 678,155 -
- Other creditors .~ o 6,754,269 7,293,831 61,603 86,236
Accruals and deferred income - ' 162,869,637 42,954,544 10,789,675 - 6,112,980
' 98,945,475 83,587,736 26,236,639 : 20,430,01 7 .

Included in accruals and. deferred income is a provision of £2,602,985 (2016: £1,733,948) in respect ofa potentlal medical clalms
incurred but.not reported relating to the self-insured medical scheme in subsndlary companies. :

The fair values of trade and other payables are not materially different from their carrying values as the impact of discounting is
not significant. There is no material difference between the amounts shown above and the total contractual undiscounted cash
flows of trade and other payables.

: For the purposes'of IFRS 7 “Financial instruments Disclosures” the financial liabilities noted above are classified as other -
financial liabilities. The group and parent company have no liabilities that may be classified as held at fair value through profit
and loss : '
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 Sepf_ember 2017 (continued)

19  Deferred income

Group Company

GO\‘"ernment and other grants £ ' £
At 1 October 2015 - 14,493,518 67,427
On acquisition _ 6063 -
Capital grants recéived during the year 1,936,896 ) -
: Released to the income statemént (1,996,447) (21,768)
" Exchange adjustment - 413,711 ) -
At 1 October 2016 ' 14,853,741 45,659
-Capital and other grants received during the year 3,899,1 81 -
Reversal of previously recognised grants (309,291) -
" Released to the income statement (1 »,807,467)‘ (21,768)
Exchange adjustment (83,203) -
At 30 September 2017 16,552,961 23,891
. The maturity profile of the carrying amount of déferred income, at 30 September was as follows:
Group Company
2017 2016 2017 - 2016
| £ £ £ 3
Less than one year 72270290 1,095,827 21,768 21,768
In more than one year but not more than two years 2,163,871 1,835,988 2,123 2 ,768
In more than two years but not mo;e than five yearé 5,888,543 4,223,245 - 12,123
Later than five years 6,230,257 6,798,681 - -
16,552,961 14,853,741 23,891 45,659
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: Notes to the fmancnal statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (contmued)

20 Other non- current llablllties

Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
, £ £ £ _ £
Accruals 12,112,155 8,866,497 5,266,692 3,006,533 _
" Other creditors - - } - - 697,118
' 12,112,155 8,866,497 5,266,692 3,703,651
Mbtu rity of non-current liabilities
_ The maturity profile ofthe carrying amount of non- current liabilities at 30 September was as fol]ows o
. . Group Company
2017 2016 - 2007 - 2016
. £ £ £ - £
In more than.one year but not more than two years 7,207,950 2,251,207 4,740,388 1,105,188
In more than two years but not more than five years 4,863,548 6,555,116 526,304 2,598,463
In more than five years 40,657 60,174 - -
12,112,155 8,866,497 5,266,692 3,703,651

There is no material dlfference between the amounts shown above and the total contractual undlscounted cash flows of other

‘non- current liabilities.

21  Share capital and share premium

Group and company 2017 © 2016
Authorised share capital £ £
139,999,999 (2016: 139,999,999) ordinary A shares of £1 each - 139,999,999 139,999,999 -
10,000,000 (2016: 10,000,000) class B non-voting ordmary shares of £1 each 10,000,000 ]0,000,000
1 (2016:1) founder share of £1 ' 1 , T

' 150,000,000 150,000,000

- The ordinary A shares, B shares rank pari passu in all respects and enjoy the same rights and.privileges save that the B shares
_are non-voting. The Founder share has veto rights in a number of areas; however it does not receive an economic benefit from

the group. All shares rank in full for dividends.

Shares of £1 each

. Class B '
Group and company Ordinary A ordinary Founder .Total
Allotted and fully paid and share capltal £ £ £ £
Atl October 2015and 1 October 2016 13,442,248 1,761,583 1 15,203,832
Issue of share capital 78,207 - - 78,207
At 30 September 2017 13,520,435 1,761,583 1 15,282,039




Almac Gro‘up Limited ' o 51
' Notes to the fmancnal statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (contmued)

,21 Share capltal and share premium

Share -

. ) . . ) ) premium .
Group and company N ) ) £
At 1 October 2015.and 1 October 2016 ) ' i 173,292,246
Issue of share capital ) ; . 508,346
At 30 September 2017 o - 173,800,592

' Qn 22 November 2016, the company issued £78,2Q7 of ordinary A shares of £1 each at a tota! consideration of £586,553
22 Employee benefit trust

Under IFRS, an entity that controls an employee benefit trust is required by SIC 12 “Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities”
to consolidate that Trust. Accordingly the assets, liabilities and transactions of the Almac Employee Benefit Trust and the Almac
Offshore Employee Benefit Trust have been consolidated in these group financial statements. The Trusts are discretionary tfusts
established for the benefit of employees and former employees of the parent company, including directors, and may be ‘used to
meet obligations under the direction of the Trustees. At 30 September 2017 no shares of the parent company were held by the
Trusts.

23 Cash generated from operations o
: » : . Group : Company -

2017 - 2016 2017 ~ 2016

_ £ £ ot ok

Profit/(loss) before income tax ' 33,031,456 26,785,268 (4,013,729) © 9,864,255
Adjustments for: 4 A ’

-Finance inceme_ ) (9,148) (793,644) (6,159,437) 'A (16,406,848)
Finance costs ‘ - 1,153,961 1,083,059 8,274,201 ) 4,950,583
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14,946,011 13,960,737 977,522 - 871,929
Amortisation of intangible assets : 4 ' 7,356,403 6,841,942 504,905 732,308
Research and development credit - (2,911,467) - ‘ - -
(Profit)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equibment (4,336) ‘ (1,620) - 8,910 .
Release of capital grant ' (1,807,467) (1,996,447) " (23,891) (21,768)

'Movement in inventories - . © (2,898,858) (3,41 1,646) . - ‘ -
Movement in trade and other receivables - (21,896,434)  (30,303,265) (5,287,693)A (2,105,290)
Movement in trade and other payables 18,608,093 22,552,342 7,238,011 . 3,129,378
Net cash generated from operations 45568214 34716726 1,509,889 1,023,457 -

The principal nori-cash transactioh is the inception of £nil (2016: £210,890) of finance leases for additions in the current year.

24 Pension commitments
The group operates a defined contribution scheme for employees whereby the assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the group in an mdependently administered scheme. Pension costs for the defined contrlbutlon scheme Wwere as

fol]ows '

o . ‘ 2017 2016
' Group ' I , I £
Defined contr|but|on scheme - . ’ 5,162,454 4,411,928

- Amounts owed to the pension scheme as at 30 September 2017 totalled £660,878 (2016: £545,986). -
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25 Capital and other financial comm‘it‘ments | A

Contracts placed for future expenditure not provided in the financial statements:

2017 - 2016

" Group . , : . o ‘ : : £ . £
Property, plant and equipment Lo : 7,572,940 14,516,281
26 Operating lease commitments - minimum lease payments
The future aggregate minimum lease ‘payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
. Motbr vehicles ) Buildings o Other
G 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 T 2016
roup £ £ £ £ A
No [ater.than one year 228,607 - 276,505 4,719,909 4,369,589 91,868 - 71,823
" More than one year and 234,484 363,547 11,861,260 6,475,961 225,874 . 164,806
no later than five years . 4 , o
Later than five years - - 18,126,819 2,209,698 - 499 |
‘ 463,091 640,052 34,707,987 13,055,248 317,742 237,128
Motor vehicles Buildings Other -
C ) 2016 2017 _ 2016 2017 . 2016 .
ompany £ £ £ £ £ _ £
No l_ater than one year . 78,845 - 113,233 1,150,574 212,400 12,142 . 10,431
More than one year and 75477 . 139,728 . 7,019,720 729,600 - 9,862 17,008
no later than five years _ '
After 5 years : - . - " 16,606,753 406,875 - .
‘ 154,322 - 252,961 24,777,047 1,348,875 20,004 127,439

27 Conti.nge‘nc'ies

There exists a contingent liability to repay certain capital and revenue grants received from Invest Northern Ireland (formerly
the Industrial Development Board) if future employment levels fall below specified levels. The directors do not anticipate any
repayment falling due under the terms on which the grants weré received. ’

The-com'p‘ahy. bank borrdwings are secured by certain fixed and floating charges over the property assets and undertakings of
the company. ‘ ‘ '
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Notes to the ﬁnancral statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (contmued)

28 . Share- based payments

The group operates a phantom share scheme whereby share awards are granted to directors and senior management employees.
The share award is granted for £nil consideration, and is conditional on the director or employee continuing in employment for
A period of three years from the dafe the share award is made, which is the first of January following the financial year end. The
group accounts for these share awards as cash-settled share-based payments which are measured at fair value and recognised as -
an expense in the income statement with a corresponding increase in liabilities (within accruals). The fair values of these
payments are measured at each reporting date using professional external valuers, in line with the terms and conditions upon,
which the awards are granted. The fair value is recognised over the period during which employees become unconditionally
entitled to the awards, subject to the group’s estimate of the number of awards which will lapse due to employees leaving the
group prior to vesting. The total amount recognised in the income statement as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual amount

of awards that are expected to vest, except where forfeiture is due to employee’s termination of contract. '

Share awards are exercisable from the first of January, three years following the award date. The share award is exercisable at
the share price as-determined by professionally qualified valuers at the end of the financial year when the share is exercrsable
and all share awards are cash settled

The fair value of each share award granted and the assumptions used in the calculatlon are as follows

Grant date C o 30 September 2017 30 September 2016
Share price at grant date — ) £0.762 - £0.651
Number of employees V A | 11 ‘ .12
Share awards o _ 2,347,179 T 2,449,727
" Vesting period (years) ‘ | 4 o 4 " . 4
Option life (years) i 4 4
Expeeted life (years) : . - "4 A 4
Dividend yield . _ Nil Nil
Risk free interest rate : : , S 50% O 50%
Fair value o ' £0.762 . £0.651 -

- The weighted average fair value of share awards granted during the year determined using the Black-Scholes valuation model -
was £0.762 (2016: £0.651). The significant inputs into the model were the share price at grant date exercise price, dwrdend
yield, risk free interest rate and expected option life as shown above.

Movements in the number of share awards outstanding are as follows:

2017 . 2016

, . Number  Number
Outstandmg at 1 October - ’ ' - 7,093,028 . 7,116,265 ‘
. Granted S 2345924 2,458,135
" Forfeited' .. - ' , (178,737) L. (231,677)
' Exercised 4 _ (2,342,015) ‘ (2,249,695) -
'Outstandmg at 30 September - 6,918,200 7,093,028

Exercisable on 1 January 2018/2017 . ’ 2,283,008 - : 2,3! 1,451

The weighted average share price of share awards exercised in the year was £0.762 (2016:‘ £0.651).
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28. Share based payments :

" Share awards outstandingf at the end of the year have the following expiry dates:

2017 2016

. ‘Number . ~ Number

2007 - . | ' ‘ o 2311451
2018 - | , 2,283,008 2368212
2019 ; R " 2,339,136 ;2,413,365
2020 S : 2,296,056 ' .

The total expense recogmsed in the income statement was £2,620,080 (201 6: £1 273 193) The llablllty at 30 September 2017
: was £5,271,668 (2016: £4,121,049). o

29 Busi‘ness combinatio_ns

In December 2016 the Group acqulred 100% of the share capital of MPI Europharma lelted The consideration was cash
settled

The followmg table sets out the values of the identifiable assets and liabilities acqunred and their professnonal fair values tothe 4

Group.
Fmr value
) €

Assets A ’ , { A ‘ o :
Intangible fixed assets ’ 340,000
Net assets - i - 340,000 -
Goodwill arising on acquisition _ L.
Consideration . - ' . ... 340,000

All acquisition costs have been taken to the income statement.

The fol]owing gives i) the revenue and profit for the period to 30 September 2017 as though the acquisiti-on date for all
business combinations that occurred during the period had been as of the beginning of the reportmg period and ii) the revenue

and proft for the period, smce acquisition: '
12 months

. . ending
30 September .

’ 2017

¢

Revenue -

Profit for the period

9 months
ending

- 30 September
: 2017
I

Revenue

Profit for. the period _ . . } B - — R .
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30 Ultlmate controllmg party and related party transactions

Duetoa spllt ofownershlp and control over the group there is not consndered to be an ultimate parent undertaklng

Almac Group L|m|ted a company mcorporated in Northern Ireland, is the parent undertaking of the largest and smallest group
of undertakings of which the company is a member and for which group financial statements are prepared. The registered off'ce
of Almac Group lelted is Almac House, 20 Seagoe Industrial Estate, Craigavon, BT63 SQD. ’

At the balance sheet date, the ultimate controlling parties are A D Armstrong, S Campbell, C Hayburn and J W Irvine.

“The McClay Foundation is a related party due to common directors.

Cdmpanies under common control are also related parties under 1AS 24. Transactions entered into durin_g the year with such
parties are as follows: :

2017 - 2016

Group . E £ , - £
Interest payable to related parties ‘ ) - (43,405) - ' (60,345)
Amounts owed to related parties ' o (2,033,190) (2,850,330)
2017 - 2016

Company : ' , : e - £

Sales to group undertakings - ‘ 30,247,502' 28,773,057
Purchases from group undertakings . 312,861 (308,205)

Interest receivable from group undertakings . ' . 6,155,850 4,966,553
Interest payable to group undertakings ' (4,587,919) . (4,118,588)

" Amounts owed by group undel‘takings . _ 228,704,561 - 214,524,704
Amounts owed to group undertakings - ' | (201,823,094) (182,212,284)
_ Amotints owed to related parties A . ‘ (1,160,725) ' (1,5]7,865)'
Group relief receivable/_(payable) ’ 218,405 (1,443,751)

Detalls of amounts owed by and to related parties are disclosed in notes 15 17 and 18 respectively. Details of interest payable
and receivable on related party balances are disclosed in note 6.

31 Post balance shéet events

On 31 October 2017, the group acquired the shares of Bioclin Research Laboratories Ltd, a company registered in the Republic
_of Ireland and POA Scandinavia AB, a company registered in Sweden for a combined consideration of £13,056,875 and

- deferred consideration dependent on performance in future years. No fair value assessment has been performéd-as the
completlon accounts have not yet been finalised.

32 Financial instruments by category

The -group and parent company’s ﬁnancnal mstruments are claSSIf ed as follows:

_ Assets and liabilities . Category of financial mstrument
' Trade and other rece_ivables. E ‘ Loans and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents _ ‘ Loans and other receivables
Borrowings - - s Other financial liabilities at amortised cost
: Trade and other payables C Other financial liabilities at amortised cost

. : !
Other non-current liabilities L Other financial liabilities at amortised cost




